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HERITAGE PLANNER’S SUMMARY OF HISTORICAL 

AND ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION

BUILDING NAME AND ADDRESS - 
St Francis of Assisi Friary / St. Anthony’s College (1925, 1931 and 1946) 






6770 – 128 Avenue, Edmonton
Register of Historic Buildings in Edmonton - “B” List

RECOMMENDATION
St. Francis of Assisi Friary / St. Anthony’s College is recommended for designation as a Municipal Historic Resource because of its historical and architectural significance.

ARCHITECTURAL HISTORY

Style/Type

St. Francis of Assisi Friary / St. Anthony’s College is an example of Gothic Revival style of architecture.

Design

The original 1925 structure is a basic rectangular brick building.  However, the 1931 addition was designed in the gothic revival style.  The front of the building faces south has a projected entry with a stepped parapet and niche containing a religious statue.  The building has an asymmetrical entry and precast concrete trim, pointed arch windows with keystones on the first floor.  On second and third floors, windows are rectangular with six over six panes.
Construction

The original building was built in 1925 with a concrete foundation with three floors of poured in place concrete structural floors that are supported on the exterior walls and interior bearing walls.  The exterior walls consist of structural clay tile cladded with reddish brown brick.  The interior bearing walls also consist of structural clay tile. 

The 1931 addition was constructed with a concrete foundation and pored in place reinforced concrete floors with the addition of clay tile, forma waffle structural slab system.  The floors rest on beams that sit on pilasters and the exterior walls.  The exterior walls are load bearing and consist of two widths of brick.  The brick colour matches the brick on the original 1925 building.
The gymnasium built in 1946 has a concrete foundation with a floor structure consisting of 5 ply 2” x 12” beams resting on 3” diameter steel columns with a floor system consisting of 2” x 6” lumber on edge.  The exterior walls are structural clay tile with brick veneer.
Designer/Builder

For the original building built in 1925, the architect is not known while the builder was listed as J. P. Desrochers. For the construction of extension in 1931, the Architect was Edward Underwood and the builder was J. P. Desrochers Company Ltd.  The addition of the gymnasium in 1946 was designed by George H. MacDonald and built by Mill and Olsen.
Both the architect Edward Underwood and the builder J. P. Desrochers were prominent in the construction of churches and other buildings during the 1920’s and 1930’s for the Archdiocese of Edmonton.  Both were also responsible for the design and construction of the Oblates Maison Provinciale, a designated historical resource by both the Province of Alberta and the City of Edmonton.
CULTURAL HISTORY

Historical Importance

The history of the St. Francis of Assisi Church and St. Anthony’s College begins with the arrival of the Canadian Northern Railway in Edmonton in 1905 and the increased establishment of other industries in Packingtown.  It was called this because of the establishment of Swift’s Canadian Company’s packing plant located at Fort Road and 66 Street.  The area grew in population generating the need for missionaries. 

Due to the efforts of the Very Reverend Father Coulombe Dryer and Bishop Emile J. Legal of St. Albert, the Franciscans came west to set up a mission in the Edmonton area.  In June 1909, the first temporary monastery for the Franciscan Friars was built on this site.  The first Franciscan were Fr. Boniface Heidmeyer and Bro. Andrew Chevalier.  Construction began on the permanent friary soon after the completion of the temporary structure.  It was considered sufficiently completed enough to move in by October 1909.  This friary was the first permanent foundation of the Franciscan Apostolate in Western Canada and was the office of the Major Superior of the Ecclesiastic Province of Christ the King (an area from the Ontario/Manitoba border to Vancouver Island).  It was not until 1912 when the first St. Francis of Assisi church was to be completed and officially blessed.

By the early 1920’s the Franciscans obtained permission from Archbishop H.J. O’Leary of Edmonton to open a Seraphic College for Franciscan Vocations.  The cornerstone of the first building was laid on May 17, 1925.  It was completed in September 1925 at a total coast of $39,633. 

As enrollment at the college grew, it became necessary to add an extension to the original building.  It was to become the most architecturally interesting portion of St. Anthony’s College. Designed and built in the Gothic Revival style, it was designed to hold sixty five pupils and a friary for the priests. 

In 1946, the gymnasium was the final addition to the College.  The purpose of the addition was to provide the College a combined exercise facility and auditorium with a basement dormitory for more students.
CONTEXT

Site

The site was purchased in 1909 by Pierre Dorais, the syndic (trustee) of the Franciscan Fathers with the financial support of Bishop E. J. Legal from Edward Grierson, the developer of the land. This site is bordered by 129 Ave. to the south, 68 St to the west, St. Francis of Assisi Catholic Elementary/Junior High School to the east and a vacant field to the north. 

Neighbourhood

This site is located in the neighbourhood of Balwin. It is three blocks north of  the Fort Road business area. 
Visual/Symbolic

St. Anthony’s College / St. Francis Assisi Friary continues to have strong presence in its neighbourhood.  It is now owned by John Bosco Child and Family Services Foundation and will be called the St. Francis Centre.
INTEGRITY

St. Anthony’s College / St. Francis of Assisi Friary has a high degree of integrity, except original wood windows were replaced with vinyl cladded windows. 
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